
LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room, 1212 George Jenkins Blvd.  
Wednesday, March 11th, 2020, at 8:30 a.m. 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

Call to Order           Action Required 

 

  

 

1. Approval of February 12, 2020 LAMTD Board Meeting Minutes  Approval 

 

2. Public Comments         None 

 

3. Presentation of the District Independent Audit for  

FY 2018/2019/ Daniel Anderson, Manager, Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC  Approval 

 

4. Finance / David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer   

a. LAMTD Financials        None 

b. PCTS Financials        None 

c. TD Financials        None 

d. Travel Trainer Program Grant, Resolution 20-06    Approval 

e. State Corridor Grant, Resolution 20-07     Approval 

f. Rural Transit 5311 funding, Resolution 08     Approval 

g. Asset Disposals        Approval 

 

5. Legal / Tim Darby, Esq. 

a. FlixBus Release and Indemnification Agreement  Approval 

 

6. Title VI Program Update / Marcia Roberson Director of RMCC  Approval 

 

7. Transit System Update / Aaron Dunn & Paul Simms, Revenue Services None 

 

8. Fleet Maintenance / Joseph Cheney, Director of Fleet Maintenance 

 

a. Purchase of Two Ford Transit Buses T24 Ten Passenger  Approval 

 

9. Policy Update Prohibiting Weapons/ Steven Schaible, Director of HR   Approval 

   

10. Executive Director Report / Tom Phillips 

a. Agency Update(s)  None 

                    

11.  Executive Informational Summary / Tom Phillips      

 a.    February Calendar       None 

      b.    Ridership and UAP Update                                                 None 

                          

12. Other Business  TBD 

 

                                                                                       

Adjournment 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #1 

 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Item: Approval of the Feb 12, 2020 LAMTD Meeting Minutes 

 

Presenter: James Phillips 

  

Recommended  

Action: Board approval of the Feb 12, 2020 LAMTD Meeting 

Minutes 

    

 

Attachments: Feb 12, 2020 LAMTD Meeting Minutes 

   

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, February 12th, 2020 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

Directors: 
Polk County Commissioner George Lindsey III 
Polk County Commissioner John Hall 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Sara McCarley 
City of Lakeland Mayor Bill Mutz 

 
Executive Director: Tom Phillips  
Executive Assistant: James Phillips  
 
 
 

Call to Order 
8:31 a.m. By Commissioner Hall 

 
 
Agenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes 

a.  Approval of the January 15, 2019 LAMTD Board Meeting Minutes 

 

[Attachment available] 
 

 
“Approval of meeting minutes for the month of January” 
1st Bill Mutz/ 2nd Sara McCarley 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY   

 
Agenda Item #2 – Public Comments  

Ms. Mary Lee- Asked if we can add more holidays to the bus schedule. 
 

 
Agenda Item #3 – Finance 

 

a. LAMTD Financials 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date December 31, 2019 

FY 2019-2020 

Year to Date December 31, 2019 

 

Description YTD of FY 
 Budget 

YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 
Expended 

Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 25% $2,748,760 $4,577,700 167% $11 Million 

Expenses YTD 25% $2,748,760 $2,323,800 85% $11 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, February 12th, 2020 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

The total revenues realized year-to-date through December 31, 2019 totaled $4.6 million or 167% of the YTD 
budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect $114,660 or 77% of YTD budgeted revenues through December 31, 2019.  
 

• Contract revenues totaled $34,860 under the YTD budgeted revenues for UAP (Universal Access 
Passes).  
 

• Other Contract Revenues totaled zero for RAMCO. RAMCO payment of $93,600 billed in January 2020. 
  

• Ad Valorem taxes reflects $4.207 million or 87% of budget. The total budgeted revenues are $4.86 
million. Only 95% of the taxes are budgeted by State Law. 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments 
are as follows: 

➢ 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
➢ 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
➢ 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
➢ 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property 
taxes by       May of each year. 
 

• Interest Income on Investment at the LGIP totaled $37,510 in line with budget. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants $1.7 million is being billed quarterly.  These grants are on a cash basis 
which mean the services must be provided before we receive grant assistance. The year-to-date 
revenues totaled zero  

 

• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.4 million.  This grant is also on a cash 
basis which means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  
Since most of the grant funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant 
reimbursement is received at the end of the fiscal year after State funds are recognized. The year-to-
date revenues totaled zero. 
 

• Advertising income reflects no activity. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is in line with budget. 
 

• Misc. revenue reflects $1,118 under budget. 
 

• The other revenues are showing a lag due to timing and being on a cash basis. 
 
 
 
 

 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 
Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 

For the Year-to-date December 31, 2019 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, February 12th, 2020 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

FY 2019-2020 
 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through December 31, 2019 totaled $2.3 million or 85% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits represent 65% of the FY 2019-2020 budget.  As of December 31, 2019, these 
expenses totaled $1.5 million or 15% under budget of $1.78 million a favorable variance.  

 

• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $109,320 of the YTD budget; and over budget. 
 

• Other services expenses totaled $31,322 of the YTD budget, over budget and is for cost for temporary 
employees in Finance- budgeted in salaries account.  

 

• Fuel expenses totaled $118,935 YTD, under budget. 
 

• Materials and supplies totaled $159,332 and under budget for vehicle parts. 
 

• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are over budget, due to the Florida APTA dues paid in full. 
 

• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments over budget, since payments are 
quarterly and annually.  
 

• Fixed and variable cost has contributed to some budget variances since it is a combination of a 
onetime cost and reoccurring costs. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through December 31, 2019 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through December 31st the financials reflect a 
favorable actual variance of $2.3 million with 25% of the fiscal year due to collection of property taxes.  

 
 

 
 
* Total 13.00%, LAMTD 13.40%, PCTS 4.70% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 9/30/18 9/30/17 9/30/16 9/30/15 9/30/14 

1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)   13.00% 10.04% 13.95% 25.50% 23.08% 

2.  Cost per revenue hour                               $108.42 $106.94 $104.76 $89.45 $86.29 

3.  Revenue Hours                                           146,597 142,189 139,228 103,550 117,008 

4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                            $1,082,166 $834,971 $757,485 $847,360 $1,316,739 

5.  Ridership                                                   1,252,600 1,346,211 1,393,620 1,424,965 1,647,010 

* 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, February 12th, 2020 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

b. PCTS Financials 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 

     Polk County Transit Contract 

              Month of December 31, 2019 

                      Year to Date Report 

              Percent of FY Reported (25%) 

 

 

Revenues  

➢ The revenues totaled $1.86 million or 95% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The FTA grants drawdown reflects no activity. 

➢ Fare Revenues totaled $30,570 or 90% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The Polk County City Contributions reflects payment of $492,620 and over the FY 

Budget.  

➢ The County funding reflects payments for the budgeted grants match totaling 

$1.292 million for the for the first of four payments. 

➢ The FDOT Grants drawdown reflects no activity. 

 

Expenses 

➢ Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 

➢ Total expenses for the period totaled $1.5 million or 76% of the year-to-date 

budget.  

➢ Salaries and wages totaled $.9 million or 84% of the YTD Budget 

➢ Operating expenses totaled $.5 million or 84% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ The contract services are for contractual cost for the four routes with the Contractor 

Transitions Commute Solutions with expenses of $103,000 or 76% of budget. 

➢ Capital Expenses shows no activity. 
 

c. TD Financials 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 

                                  The Transportation Disadvantaged Program 

                 Month of December 31, 2019 

                      Year to Date Report 

             Percent of FY Reported (50%) 

State FY July 1, 2019 thru June 30, 2020 

 

 

 

Revenues  

➢ The revenues totaled $741,660 or 96% of the year-to-date budget. 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, February 12th, 2020 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

➢ The TD Trust Fund Grant drawdown reflects $644,280 or 96% of the grants. 

➢ Contract Revenues and other revenues totaled $27,500. 

➢ The County funding for the match totaled $69,280 or 92%. 

 

Expenses 

➢ Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 

➢ Total expenses for the period totaled $669,900 or 89% of the year-to-date budget.  

➢ Salaries and wages totaled $456,240 or 94% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ Operating expenses totaled $213,670 or 82% of the YTD Budget. 

 

Operating Results 

➢ Actual Revenues exceeded actual expenses by $71,750 

 

 

 
 

d. The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (Florida Prime) Resolution for Investment and Banking 

Services  

The District has selected the Bank of Central Florida through an RFP process for Banking Services that the 

District Board of Directors approved on January 15, 2020. This change requires a Resolution to use the 

Florida Prime. 

 

 The Florida Prime Investment Pool is created by Florida Statutes Chapter 215 and 218 and permit 

the District to invest its surplus funds in authorized investments. 

 

“Approval of the Resolution as recommended by staff” 
1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Bill Mutz 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

e. ADA DEPLOYMENT PADS AND BUS SHELTER INSTALLATION AND MANUFACTURING  

Through formal competitive bid processes, the District solicited and awarded both the ADA Deployment 

Pads/Shelter Installation Contract 19-002 and the Shelter Manufacturing Contract 19-010.   

 

Contract 19-010 was awarded to Spencer Fabrication and approved by the Board and FDOT in March 2019, 

while Contract 19-002, to FL Safety Contractors, was awarded and approved in June 2019. 

 

 Both Contracts were written contingent upon Available Funding, for which the District has 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, February 12th, 2020 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

received numerous grant awards, now exceeding the original contract amounts. Said grant awards have 

afforded us the ability to increase deployment pad sites and shelters under the noted contracts. For this 

reason, the District seeks to increase both contracts by two-hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) each.  

 

 The ADA Deployment Pads/Shelter Installation awarded for four-hundred and fifty thousand 

($450,000) would increase to six-hundred and fifty thousand ($650,000), and the Shelter Manufacturing 

awarded for two-hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) would increase to four-hundred thousand 

($400,000). Said grant awards have afforded us the ability to increase deployment pad sites and shelters 

under the noted contracts.  

  

 The attached modifications reiterate the contractual clauses referencing the agreements being 

contingent upon available funding and that the increase does not reflect that of the District’s minimum 

guarantee.  

 The solicitation was posted publicly on the District’s website and on our “business-2-government” 

web service “Demandstar.com”, provided by Onvia. Thirty (30) firms received notification of the posting, of 

which 5% were Minority Owned or Small Businesses.  

 

Five offers were received and reviewed for responsiveness by the Contract Specialist. All were found 

responsive and evaluated 50% technically and 50% price. Both technical and price were given equal weight 

to ensure that the selected firm was experienced, adequately staffed, and understood the requirements as 

outlined in the solicitation, with price being equally important. This process resulted in a cost savings of 

about $6,000 annually. 

 

The Source Evaluation Committee (SEC) reviewed the proposals in accordance with the Evaluation criteria 

identified in Section 5 of the solicitation, while Procurement reviewed, evaluated and scored the pricing 

through a mathematic calculation. 

One firm did not meet the technical requirements and was found to be outside of the competitive range 

on pricing; resulting in no further consideration for award. Details are provided within the attached 

Findings and Determinations. 

 

The remaining firms were given due consideration, resulting in the Bank of Central Florida ranking highest 

overall. Having demonstrated the ability to meet the needs of the District, a responsibility review was 

conducted with no adverse findings. 

 

In conclusion, the Bank of Central Florida is being recommended for award. 

 

“Approve an increase to the Not to Exceed Amount for the ADA Deployment 
Pads/Shelter Installation Contract 19-002 and the Shelter Manufacturing Contract 19-
010.” 
1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Sara McCarley 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, February 12th, 2020 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
 

 

 
Agenda Item #4– Legal 

 
a. New Beginnings Highschool UAP Renewal 
Renewal of the New Beginnings Highschool Universal Access Program to include automatic renewal and 
sponsorship of the Summer of Safety program. 
 

“Approve the UAP renewal with New Beginnings High School.” 
1st Sara McCarley/ 2nd Bill Mutz 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
Agenda Item #5– SSPP & SPP Approval 

 
Annually, the District is required to update the System Safety Program Plan (SSPP).  The program plan was 
sent to board members in advance for familiarity.  
  

“Approve the 2020 System Safety Program Plan and its component the Security 
Program Plan.” 
1st Bill Mutz/ 2nd George Lindsey 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

Agenda Item #6– Human resources 
 

a. Credential Verification  
Legal review – Avoid FCRA Third Party complications. 
 
Current employment application language already authorizes verification procedures.   
 
Internal procedures managed by current HR team. 
 
Only when necessary or required.   

 

Agenda Item #7 – Executive Director Report 
a. Agency Updates 

- Retreat for the board is April 8 @ Circle B Bar Reserve 
- Agency 40th Anniversary is coming up 
- Elderpoint Ministires will need to be current by end of March or let go. 
- HART CEO position, Tom is not applying but encouraging staff 
- Lynx sales tax initiative is on the ballot this year 
- Union is debating pepper spray issues 
- E-purse is coming soon 
- All-employee meeting went well and identified 3 areas of concern: 1. Safety 2. Protection 3. Clenliness 

 
b. Metro Bench Update 

Follow up from the direction of the board to research the pedestrian bench provider for Lakeland and the 
county. 
[Attachment Available] 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, February 12th, 2020 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

c. Level II Background Amendment 
 
Last month the Lakeland area Mass Transit Board of directors approved to pass the cost of doing these 
level II background checks in the form of an increased rate model. Since it was determined the rate model 
can not be changed until next Fiscal Year, we have decided it would be best to pass the costs as a pro-
rated surcharge to cover the added expense of doing business with our partners we currently have 
Memorandums of Understandings with. 
 

 

Agenda Item #8 – Executive Director Informational Summary 
 
a. January Calendar 

 
[Attachment Available] 
 

b. Ridership and UAP Update 
 

 [Attachment Available] 
 
 
Adjournment at 9:23 a.m. 
 
Approved this 11th day of March, 2020. 

 
 
 

 
  

Chairman – County Commissioner John Hall Minutes Recorder – James Phillips 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

March 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #2 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Item: Public Comments 

 

 

Presenter: TBD 

 

 

Recommended  

Action: TBD 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

March 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #3 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Item: Presentation of the District Independent Audit for FY 2018/2019 

 

 

Presenter: Daniel Anderson, Manager, Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC 

 

Recommended  

Action: Staff recommendation to approve the independent audit as 

presented. 

 

Summary: Presentation from Mauldin & Jenkins of the FY 2018/2019 

Independent Financial Audit 

 

Attachments: (1) FY 2018/2019 District Independent Audit 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #4a 
 

 

Agenda Item: January 31, 2020 LAMTD Monthly Financial Statement 

 FY 2019-20  

 

Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 

 

Recommended  

Action: None 

 

Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 

District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 

actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 

statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 

 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 

provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 

the budget. 

 

Attachments: See Attachments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date January 31, 2020 

FY 2019-2020 

Year to Date January 31, 2020 

 

Description YTD of FY 
 Budget 

YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 
Expended 

Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 33% $3,665,010 $5,210,720 142% $11 Million 

Expenses YTD 33% $3,665,010 $3,351,220 91% $11 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through January 31, 2020 totaled $5.2 million or 142% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect $141,510 or 72% of YTD budgeted revenues through January 31, 2020.  
 

• Contract revenues totaled $57,900 under the YTD budgeted revenues for UAP (Universal Access Passes).  
 

• Other Contract Revenues totaled zero for RAMCO. RAMCO payment of $93,600 billed in January 2020. 
  

• Ad Valorem taxes reflects $4.51 million or 93% of budget. The total budgeted revenues are $4.86 million. Only 
95% of the taxes are budgeted by State Law. 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 

➢ 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
➢ 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
➢ 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
➢ 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Interest Income on Investment at the LGIP totaled $52,400 in line with budget. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants $1.7 million is being billed quarterly.  These grants are on a cash basis which mean 
the services must be provided before we receive grant assistance. The year-to-date revenues totaled $68,500.  

 

• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.4 million.  This grant is also on a cash basis which 
means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since most of the grant 
funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement is received at the end of 
the fiscal year after State funds are recognized. The year-to-date revenues totaled zero. 
 

• Advertising income reflects $34,680. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is in line with budget. 
 

• Misc. revenue reflects $10,080 under budget. 
 

• The other revenues are showing a lag due to timing and being on a cash basis. 
 

 
 
 



 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 
Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 

For the Year-to-date January 31, 2020 
FY 2019-2020 

 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through January 31, 2020 totaled $3.4 million or 91% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits represent 65% of the FY 2019-2020 budget.  As of January 31, 2020, these expenses totaled 
$2.0 million or 15% under budget of $2.4 million a favorable variance.  

 

• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $158,000 of the YTD budget; and over budget due to 
contract payments for Trapeze. 

 

• Other services expenses totaled $34,750 of the YTD budget, over budget and is for cost for temporary 
employees in Finance- budgeted in salaries account.  

 

• Fuel expenses totaled $162,330 YTD, under budget. 
 

• Materials and supplies totaled $211,360 and under budget for vehicle parts. 
 

• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are over budget, due to the Florida APTA dues paid in full. 
 

• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments over budget, since payments are quarterly and 
annually.  
 

• Fixed and variable cost has contributed to some budget variances since it is a combination of a onetime cost and 
reoccurring costs. 
 

• The CRA Payments totaling $257,706 for Tax Year 2019 is paid. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through January 31, 2020 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through January 31st the financials reflect a favorable actual 
variance of $1.9 million with 33% of the fiscal year due to collection of property taxes.  

 
 

 
 
* Total 13.00%, LAMTD 13.40%, PCTS 4.70% 

 STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 9/30/18 9/30/17 9/30/16 9/30/15 9/30/14 

1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)   13.00% 10.04% 13.95% 25.50% 23.08% 

2.  Cost per revenue hour                               $108.42 $106.94 $104.76 $89.45 $86.29 

3.  Revenue Hours                                           146,597 142,189 139,228 103,550 117,008 

4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                            $1,082,166 $834,971 $757,485 $847,360 $1,316,739 

5.  Ridership                                                   1,252,600 1,346,211 1,393,620 1,424,965 1,647,010 

* 

 



MONTH OF  (SoRE 6/3/15)

$'s % $'s %

Account

Farebox/Pass Sales 26,851$              49,403$              (22,551)$             -46% 141,511$            197,610$            (56,099)$             -28% 592,830$            

Contract Income (UAP) 20,045$              17,781$              2,264$                13% 57,907$              71,123$              (13,217)$             -19% 213,370$            

Other Contract Revenue 93,600$              7,800$                85,800$              1100% 93,600$              31,200$              62,400$              200% 93,600$              

Miscellaneous Income                    8,964$                8,167$                798$                   10% 10,082$              32,667$              (22,584)$             -69% 98,000$              

Advertising Revenue                     34,680$              12,000$              22,680$              189% 34,680$              48,000$              (13,320)$             -28% 144,000$            

Investment/Interest Income (net) 15,141$              12,500$              2,641$                21% 52,401$              50,000$              2,401$                5% 150,000$            

Ad Valorum Income, net 300,231$            404,623$            (104,391)$           -26% 4,507,288$         1,618,490$         2,888,798$         178% 4,855,470$         

FDOT Operating Grant 68,180$              142,215$            (74,035)$             -52% 68,529$              568,860$            (500,331)$           -88% 1,706,580$         

Federal Operating Grant -$                    200,542$            (200,542)$           -100% (0)$                      802,167$            (802,167)$           -100% 2,406,500$         

Cost Recovery 4,212$                2,167$                2,045$                94% 14,656$              8,667$                5,990$                69% 26,000$              

City of Lakeland 15,091$              15,152$              (60)$                    0% 60,365$              60,607$              (241)$                  0% 181,820$            

Bartow Express -$                    1,478$                (1,478)$               -100% -$                        5,913$                (5,913)$               -100% 17,740$              

PCTS - Support Cost Reimb. 42,426$              42,426$              (0)$                      0% 169,703$            169,703$            (0)$                      0% 509,110$            

TOTAL REVENUES 629,421$            916,252$            (286,830)$           -31% 5,210,723$         3,665,007$         1,545,716$         42% 10,995,020$       

Salaries 355,124$            413,593$            (58,469)$             -14% 1,398,704$         1,654,370$         (255,666)$           -15% 4,963,110$         

Employee Benefits 152,669$            178,214$            (25,545)$             -14% 607,768$            712,857$            (105,089)$           -15% 2,138,570$         

Advertising Fees 605$                   1,583$                (978)$                  -62% 2,518$                6,333$                (3,815)$               -60% 19,000$              

Professional & Techinical Ser 48,609$              30,564$              18,045$              59% 157,929$            122,257$            35,673$              29% 366,770$            

Contract Maintenance Services 6,622$                10,383$              (3,761)$               -36% 25,826$              41,533$              (15,707)$             -38% 124,600$            

Other Services 3,428$                5,204$                (1,776)$               -34% 34,750$              20,817$              13,933$              67% 62,450$              

Fuel & Lubricants 43,396$              50,179$              (6,783)$               -14% 162,331$            200,717$            (38,386)$             -19% 602,150$            

Freight 353$                   846$                   (493)$                  -58% 2,166$                3,383$                (1,218)$               -36% 10,150$              

Repairs & Maintenance 125$                   4,217$                (4,092)$               -97% 6,179$                16,867$              (10,688)$             -63% 50,600$              

Materials & Supplies 43,452$              54,008$              (10,557)$             -20% 211,365$            216,033$            (4,668)$               -2% 648,100$            

Utilities/Telephone 11,253$              13,183$              (1,930)$               -15% 42,196$              52,733$              (10,537)$             -20% 158,200$            

Insurance Expense 33,405$              35,374$              (1,969)$               -6% 130,854$            141,497$            (10,643)$             -8% 424,490$            

Dues & Subscriptions 1,404$                3,700$                (2,296)$               -62% 15,592$              14,800$              792$                   5% 44,400$              

Education/Training/Meeting/Travel 3,852$                7,175$                (3,323)$               -46% 19,637$              28,700$              (9,063)$               -32% 86,100$              

Service Charges 615$                   1,150$                (535)$                  -46% 3,552$                4,600$                (1,048)$               -23% 13,800$              

Office Expense 5,828$                9,408$                (3,580)$               -38% 27,590$              37,633$              (10,043)$             -27% 112,900$            

Advertising & Promotions 500$                   2,083$                (1,584)$               -76% 1,894$                8,333$                (6,440)$               -77% 25,000$              

Miscellaneous Expenses 1,423$                4,971$                (3,548)$               -71% 10,029$              19,883$              (9,854)$               -50% 59,650$              

Property Appraiser/Tax Collector Comm 6,837$                14,262$              (7,424)$               -52% 131,728$            57,047$              74,682$              131% 171,140$            

LDDA, CRA Contributions                 257,706$            19,270$              238,436$            1237% 257,706$            77,080$              180,626$            234% 231,240$            

Capital Expenditures/ Debt Service 25,228$              56,717$              (31,489)$             -56% 100,912$            226,867$            (125,955)$           -56% 680,600$            

Bad Debt -$                    167$                   (167)$                  -100% -$                    667$                   (667)$                  -100% 2,000$                

Restricted Contingency                  -$                    -$                        -$                        0% -$                    -$                    -$                        0% -$                        

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,002,434$         916,252$            86,182$              9% 3,351,225$         3,665,007$         (313,782)$           -9% 10,995,020$       

REVENUES (OVER)/UNDER EXPENDITURES (373,012)$           -$                        (373,012)$           1,859,498$         -$                        1,859,498$         -$                        

Actual Budget
Variance

 

FY 2020

MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Jan 2020

Month YTD
Approved 

Annual BudgetActual Budget
Variance



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #4b 
 

Agenda Item: January 31, 2020 Financials for Polk County Transit Services 

Contract – FY 2019-20 

 

Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 

  

Recommended  

Action: None  

   

Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 

District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 

actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 

statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 

 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 

provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 

the budget 

 

Attachments: See Attachments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #4b 
 

 

 

 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 

     Polk County Transit Contract 

              Month of January 31, 2020 

                      Year to Date Report 

              Percent of FY Reported (33%) 

 

 

Revenues  

➢ The revenues totaled $2.61 million or 100% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The FTA grants drawdown $217,000 year-to-date. 

➢ Fare Revenues totaled $39,100 or 86% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The Polk County City Contributions reflects payment of $498,600 and over 

the FY Budget.  

➢ The County funding reflects payments for the budgeted grants match totaling 

$1.72 million for the for the second of four payments. 

➢ The FDOT Grants drawdown reflects no activity. 

 

Expenses 

➢ Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 

➢ Total expenses for the period totaled $2.24 million or 86% of the year-to-date 

budget.  

➢ Salaries and wages totaled $1.19 million or 84% of the YTD Budget 

➢ Operating expenses totaled $.77 million or 98% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ The contract services are for contractual cost for the four routes with the 

Contractor Transitions Commute Solutions with expenses of $.278 million or 

85% of budget. 

➢ Capital Expenses shows no activity. 

 



Annual 

Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

Percent 

Expended

Revenues 

County Match 2,176,676$             725,559$            1,722,597$        237%

Other Contract Revenue - County         36,690$                  12,230$              44,090$             361%

City Contribution 497,320$                165,773$            498,621$           301%

County Contribution - PCTS 407,220$                135,740$            -$                       0%

Fares 136,000$                45,333$              39,132$             86%

FDOT Block Grants:

GOV71/G1481 - WHAT/ADA 643,490$                214,497$            -$                       0%

RURAL AQR07 1,077,966$             359,322$            87,186$             24%

FTA

FTA 5307 Grant 2,879,208$             959,736$            217,004$           23%

Capital Contributions - County -$                           -$                        -$                   0%

Total 7,854,570$             2,618,190$         2,608,630$        100%

Annual 

Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

Percent 

Expended

Labor 4,245,240$             1,415,080$         1,192,068$        84%

Contract 980,326$                326,775$            278,100$           85%

Operating 2,361,754$             787,251$            773,728$           98%

Capital 203,160$                67,721$              -$                       0%

Capital - Loughman Route 64,090$                  21,363$              -$                       0%

Total 7,854,570$             2,618,190$         2,243,896$        86%

Expenses

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District

Financial Statement

Polk County Contract

Month of January 2020

Revenue



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #4c 
 

Agenda Item: January 31, 2020 Financials for The Transportation 

Disadvantaged Program– FY 2019-20 

 

Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 

 

Recommended  

Action: None  

 

Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 

District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 

actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 

statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 

 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 

provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 

the budget 

 

 The Transportation Disadvantaged Program fiscal year starting 

July 1, 2019 and ends June 30, 2020. The funding is 90% State 

for the Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund and 10% 

matching funds funded by Polk County. There are some other 

third-party revenues for contract services. 

 

Attachments: See Attachments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #4c 
 

 

 

 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 

                                  The Transportation Disadvantaged Program 

                 Month of January 31, 2020 

                      Year to Date Report 

             Percent of FY Reported (58%) 

State FY July 1, 2019 thru June 30, 2020 

 

 

 

Revenues  

➢ The revenues totaled $861,000 or 99% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The TD Trust Fund Grant drawdown reflects $747,100 or 95% of the grants. 

➢ Contract Revenues and other revenues totaled $32,800. 

➢ The County funding for the match totaled $81,000 or 93%. 

 

Expenses 

➢ Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 

➢ Total expenses for the period totaled $770,200 or 88% of the year-to-date 

budget.  

➢ Salaries and wages totaled $536,500 or 94% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ Operating expenses totaled $233,700 or 76% of the YTD Budget. 

 

Operating Results 

➢ Actual Revenues exceeded actual expenses by $90,800. 

 

 

 



Annual Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual Total YTD

Revenues 

County Match 10% 149,788$                           87,376$                    81,116$              93%

Contract Revenue 228$                                  133$                         706$                   

Adult Day Care -$                              32,046$              

FDOT Grants: -$                              

CTD Grant -Operating 1,348,094$                        786,388$                  747,086$            95%

Total 1,498,110$                        873,898$                  860,955$            99%

Annual Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual Total YTD

Labor 973,780$                           568,038$                  $536,473 94%

-$                          

Operating 524,330$                           305,859$                  233,722$            76%

Total 1,498,110$                        873,898$                  $770,195 88%

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District

Transportation Disadvantage Program

Period Ending  -January, 2020

Revenue

Expenditure



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: MARCH 11, 2020  

AGENDA ITEM #4d 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Federal Transit Administration 2020 Section 5310 

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with 

Disabilities Public Transportation Grant Agreement 

(PTGA) FM# 437582-2-94-02 for the District 

 

Presenter: David Persaud, CFO 

 

Recommended  

Action: Staff recommend approval of the 2020 Section 5310 

acceptance of funding for LAMTD 

 

 

 

Summary: This grant involves a Travel Trainer Program for the 

purpose of educating Seniors and the Disabled population 

on how to utilize public transit.  The District has been 

awarded 5310 grant funding in the amount of $117,113 

The grant match is 80/10/10. The sum of $93,691 will be 

provided through the FTA with a cash match of $11,711 

provided by the District and $11,711 provided by the 

state FDOT.  

  

  

 

 

Attachments: Resolution #20-06 

 , 

                                

  

 

 



 
 
 
 

Resolution #20-06 
 

A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District  authorizing the signing and submission of 

a grant application and supporting documents and assurances to the Florida Department of 

Transportation, the acceptance of a grant award from the Florida Department of Transportation, and 

the purchase of vehicles and/or equipment and/or expenditure of grant funds pursuant to a grant 

award. 

WHEREAS, The Lakeland Area Mass Transit District has the authority to apply for and accept grants 

and make purchases and/or expend funds pursuant to grant awards made by the Florida Department 

of Transportation as authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the Federal Transit 

Administration Act of 1964, as amended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Lakeland Area Mass Transit District), FLORIDA: 

1. That the PTGA for item-Segment-Phase-Sequence 437582-2-94-02, is approved. 

2. The submission of a grant application(s), supporting documents, and assurances to the Florida 

Department of Transportation is approved. 

3. Tom Phillips, Executive Director  is authorized to sign the application, accept a grant award, 

purchase vehicles/equipment and/or expend grant funds pursuant to a grant award, unless 

specifically rescinded. 

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 11th day, of March 11, 2020 

By 

 

Signature, Chairperson of the Board [blue ink] 

 

John Hall, Board Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

Seal  

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: MARCH 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #4e 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Federal Transit Administration 2019 State Corridor 

Projects Public Transportation Grant Agreement 

(PTGA) FM# 414063-1-84-06 for the District 

 

Presenter: David Persaud, CFO  

 

Recommended  

Action: Recommend Approval to accept additional funding under 

the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Public 

Transportation Grant Agreement (PTGA) (FM#414063-

1-84-06), and associated Resolution for the District. 

 

Summary: FDOT has allocated funding in the amount of $756,00 

with $756,000 local funds for a total of $ 1,512,000 in 

Fiscal Year 2020 under the State Public Transit Corridor 

Program for operating expense of a transit corridor 

service operating along South Florida Avenue and State 

Road 37, a north/south corridor. 

  

 This funding will allow the District to continue the multi-

modal travel options reducing traffic congestion in the 

S.R. 37 (South Florida Avenue) Corridor. High 

frequency services for buses, with frequencies less than 

30 minutes, will continue during peak evening hours. 

 

 

Attachments: Resolution # 20-07 

  

 

 



  

 

 

 

 

    

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION # 20-07 
 

 

A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District authorizing the 

signing and submission of a grant application and supporting documents and assurances to 

the Florida Department of Transportation, and the acceptance of a grant award from the 

Department. 

 

 WHEREAS, Lakeland Area Mass Transit District has the authority to apply 

for and accept grant awards made by the Florida Department of Transportation as 

authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the Federal Transit Administration 

Act of 1964, as amended; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Lakeland Area 

Mass Transit District: 

 

1. That the PTGA for item-Segment-Phase-Sequence 414063-1-84-06 is 

approved. 

2. The submission of a grant application(s), supporting documents, and/or 

assurances to the Florida Department of Transportation is approved. 

3. Tom Phillips, Executive Director is authorized to sign the application, accept a 

grant award, and enter into, modify or terminate any subsequent award contract 

or agreement related to this grant application unless specifically rescinded. 

 

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS March 11, 2020  

 

 

    By: _______________________________ 

     (Signature) 

 

    John Hall, Chairman of the Board 

    Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

ATTEST: 
 

 

____________________________ (seal) 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: MARCH 11, 2020  

AGENDA ITEM #4f 
 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Federal Transit Administration 2020 Section 5311 

Formula Grants for Rural Areas application and 

resolution.  

 

Presenter: David Persaud, CFO 

 

Recommended  

Action: Staff recommend approval of the 2019 Section 5311 

grant award and corresponding resolution for the County.  

 

 

 

Summary: This grant provides needed services to citizens in the 

rural areas of Polk County.  The District has been 

awarded 5311 grant funding in the amount of $1,968,082 

This is a 50/50 match. FTA will provide $984,041 with 

in-kind match of $984,041 to be provided by the County. 

If awarded this program will be included in the 2020-

2021 FY budget 

  

  

 

 

Attachments:  Resolution # 20-08 

  

 

 



 

RESOLUTION #20-08 
 

 

 

A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District authorizing the signing and submission of a 

grant application and supporting documents and assurances to the Florida Department of 

Transportation, the acceptance of a grant award from the Florida Department of Transportation, and 

the purchase of vehicles and/or equipment and/or expenditure of grant funds pursuant to a grant 

award. 

WHEREAS, Lakeland Area Mass Transit District  has the authority to apply for and accept grants and 

make purchases and/or expend funds pursuant to grant awards made by the Florida Department of 

Transportation as authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the Federal Transit 

Administration Act of 1964, as amended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Lakeland Area Mass Transit District, FLORIDA: 

This resolution applies to the Federal Program under U.S.C. Section 5311. FPN # 440258-1-84-04 

The submission of a grant application(s), supporting documents, and assurances to the Florida 

Department of Transportation is approved. 

Tom Phillips, Executive Director  is authorized to sign the application, accept a grant award, purchase 

vehicles/equipment and/or expend grant funds pursuant to a grant award, unless specifically 

rescinded. 

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS March 11, 2020  

By 

 

 

Signature, Chairperson of the Board [blue ink] 

John Hall, Chairman of the Board 

Typed Name and Title 

 

ATTEST: 

Type here… 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

March 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM # 4g 
 

 
Agenda Item: Asset Disposal 
 

Presenter: David Persaud, CFO  
 

Recommended       

Action:              Recommend Board approve the disposal of five (5) rolling stock, 

fixed route buses, that have surpassed their useful life in years of 

service and/or mileage, generating costly repairs or limited usage. 

 

Summary:           The District is proposing the disposal of these items based on the 

depreciation schedule as defined by the Federal Transit 

Administration Circular 5010.1C – Grant Management Guidelines, 

Chapter II, paragraph 3.f.(4). 
  
 The vehicles shall be disposed of through a competitive bid process. 

Item that cannot be sold will be reassessed and disposed of as scrap, 

in accordance with the District’s Asset Disposal Policies. 
 

Description 
In Service 

Date  Original Cost   
Expected/Actual 

Proceeds 
FTA/CUTR/TRIPS 

Useful Life 

Current Status or 
Reason for 

Disposal 

 
Current  

Condition 

35' Fixed Route Bus #1060, 2002 
Gillig Phantom (LATMD) 

7/25/2002  $    267,229.94  Scrap Value 
12 years  or  
500,000 miles 

12+ years &  
665,747 miles 

Requires a high level 
of maintenance and 
has exceeded the 
useful life 
 

35' Fixed Route Bus #1070, 2005 
Gillig Phantom (LATMD) 

10/26/2005  $   293,478.00  Scrap Value 
12 years  or  
500,000 miles 

12+ years &  
614,548 miles 

Requires a high level 
of maintenance and 
has exceeded the 
useful life 
 

35' Fixed Route Bus #1072, 2005 
Gillig Phantom (LATMD) 

10/26/2005  $    293,478.00 Scrap Value 
12 years  or  
500,000 miles 

12+ years &  
614,548 miles 

Requires a high level 
of maintenance and 
has exceeded the 
useful life 
 
 

35' Fixed Route Bus #1076, 2006 
Gillig Phantom (LATMD) 

4/11/2006  $    300,899.00  Scrap Value 
12 years  or  
500,000 miles 

12+ years &  
599,779 miles 

Requires a high level 
of maintenance and 
has exceeded the 
useful life 
 

35' Fixed Route Bus #1077, 2006 
Gillig Phantom (LATMD) 

4/11/2006  $   300,899.00  Scrap Value 

  
12 years  or  
500,000 miles 
 

12 years &  
591,992 miles 

Requires a high level 
of maintenance and 
has exceeded the 
useful life 
 

  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

March 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #5 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Item: FlixBus Release and Indemnification Agreement 

 

 

Presenter: Tim Darby, Esq. 

 

Summary: In consideration of being allowed to have access and utilize the bus 

stop at the Gow B. Fields Park and Ride lot, located at the 

intersection of US Highway 98 and Pyramid Parkway for the 

purposes of boarding and alighting passengers. 

 

Recommended  

Action: Approve FlixBus Release and Indemnification Agreement 

 

Attachments:  FlixBus Release and Indemnification Agreement 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



RELEASE AND INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT 

 

This Release and Indemnification Agreement is entered into this _______ day of 

_________________, 2020, by and among the LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT 

DISTRICT, an independent special taxing district (hereinafter referred to as the “District”) and 

FlixBus, Inc. with registered address at 214 West 29th Street, New York, NY 10001, and 

represented by its Managing Director, Pierre Gourdain (hereinafter referred to as “FlixBus”).  

 

In consideration of being allowed to have access and utilize the bus stop at the Gow B. Fields Park 

and Ride lot, located at the intersection of US Highway 98 and Pyramid Parkway, as indicated on 

Exhibit A (the “Gow B. Fields Bus Stop”) for the purposes of boarding and alighting passengers. 

on or with property owned by the District, FlixBus, agrees as follows: 

 

1. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year commencing on  

________________, through and including _____________, 2020. 

 

2. The District or FlixBus may terminate the Agreement with no less than thirty (30)  

days written notice to the other party.  Notice shall be delivered via certified mail, return receipt 

requested, or in person, with proof of delivery.  Notice shall be effective upon receipt.  Either 

party may terminate this Agreement based on the other party’s breach, by giving the breaching 

party written notice of the breach.  If the breach is not cured within thirty (30) days, the non-

breaching party may terminate this Agreement immediately.  Waiver by either party of breach of 

any provision of this agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach and shall 

not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Agreement, and shall not act as a 

waiver or estoppels to enforcement of any provision of this Agreement.   

 

3. All notices, requests, demands and other communications which are required  

or may be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly 

given when received if personally delivered; when transmitted if transmitted by telecopy, 

electronic telephone line facsimile transmission or other similar electronic or digital transmission 

method; the day after it is sent, if sent by recognized expedited delivery service; and five (5) days 

after it is sent, if mailed, first class mail, postage prepaid. In each case, notice shall be sent to: 

 

FLIXBus:             214 West 29th Street 

                                         New York, NY 10001 

              ATTN: Pierre Gourdain 

 

    

 

 

DISTRICT:  Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 



    1212 George Jenkins Boulevard 

    Lakeland, FL 33815 

    ATTN: Tom Phillips 

 

4. If any covenant or provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid,  

illegal or incapable of being enforced, all other covenants and provisions of this Agreement shall, 

nevertheless, remain in full force and effect, and no covenant or provision shall be dependent 

upon any other covenant or provision unless so expressed herein. 

 

5. This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties  

and is a complete and exclusive statement of the Agreement between the parties.  Any renewals 

alterations, variations, modifications, amendments or waivers of provisions of this Agreement 

shall only be valid when they have been reduced to writing, duly signed, approved by all entities 

and attached to this Agreement.  This Agreement supersedes all other agreements and proposals, 

oral or written, regarding the subject matter herein, and all such other agreements and proposals 

are hereby deemed void. 

 

6. Liability of the District.  The District shall not be liable to FlixBus, its employees,  

agents, business invitees, licensees, customers, clients, family members or guests for any 

damage, injury, loss, compensation or claim, including, but not limited to, claims for the 

interruption of or loss to FlixBus’s business, based on, arising out of or resulting from any cause 

whatsoever, including, but not limited to: (a) repairs to any portion of the District’s Property; (b) 

interruption in FlixBus’s use of the District’s Property; (c) any accident or damage resulting from 

the use or operation (by the District, FlixBus or any other person) of any equipment within the 

District’s Property, including without limitation, heating, cooling, electrical or plumbing 

equipment or apparatus; (d) the termination of the FlixBus use of the District’s Property by 

reason of the condemnation or destruction of the District’s Property; (e) any fire, robbery, theft, 

mysterious disappearance or other casualty; and (f) the actions of any other person or persons.  

Any personal property or personal effects stored or placed by FlixBus on its employees in or 

about the District’s Property shall be at the sole risk of the FlixBus. 

     

7. Release and Indemnification of the District.  FlixBus shall release, defend, indemnify  

and save and hold the District harmless from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, 

losses, damages, injunctions, suits, actions, fines, penalties, claims, demands, costs and expenses 

of every kind or nature, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs, incurred by the 

District, arising directly or indirectly from or out of : (a) any accident, injury or damage which 

shall happen at, in or upon the District’s Property, however occurring; (b) any matter or thing 

growing out of the condition, occupation, use or operation by any person on the District’s 

Property, or any part thereof, or the operation of the business or activities contemplated by User 

to be conducted thereon, thereat, therein, or therefrom; (c) any failure of User to comply with 

any laws, ordinances, requirements, orders, directions, rules or regulations of any governmental 

authority; or (d) any other act or omission of User, its employees, agents, invitees, customers, 



licensees or contractors.  User’s indemnity obligations arising prior to the termination of the 

User’s use of the District’s Property shall survive such termination. 

 

8. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of  

Florida and venue of any legal proceedings shall be in Polk County, Florida, if the action is 

commenced in state court. If any action is commenced in federal court, then venue shall be in the 

United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida, Tampa Division. 

 

9. Nothing contained herein shall operate or be construed as a waiver of the  

District’s limit of liability as set forth in §768.28 of the Florida Statutes regardless of whether such 

claims are based in tort, contract, statute, strict liability, and negligence, product liability or 

otherwise.  

 

10. FlixBus and District agree that both parties shall comply with Florida’s public  

records law to specifically include the following:  

 

Public Records. District agrees to: 

a. Keep and maintain public records required by the public agency to perform the service. 

b. Upon request from the public agency’s custodian of public records, provide the public 

agency with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copies within 

a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in this chapter or as otherwise 

provided by law. 

c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the 

agreement term and following completion of the contract if FlixBus does not transfer the records 

to the public agency. 

d. Upon completion of the agreement, transfer, at no cost to the public agency all public 

records in possession of FlixBus or maintain public records required by the public agency to 

perform the service. If FlixBus transfers all public records to the public agency upon completion 

of the contract, FlixBus shall destroy any duplicate public records upon completion of the 

agreement, FlixBus shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records.  All records 

stored electronically must be provided to the public agency, upon request from the public agency’s 

custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems 

of the public agency.  

 

IF FLIXBUS HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, 

FLORIDA STATUTES, TO FLIXBUS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 

TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT STEVEN SCHAIBLE, THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 

RECORDS AT DISTRICT 863-327-1308, SSCHAIBLE@RIDECITRUS.COM, 1212 GEORGE 

JENKINS BOULEVARD, LAKELAND, FLORIDA 33815.  

 

 



11.  Each of the undersigned warrants and represents that he or she is authorized to  

execute this Agreement on behalf of the entity identified.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed for the 

uses and purposes therein expressed the day and year set forth above. 

                                                               

FLIXBUS 

 

 

 

___________________________________            BY:___________________________   

                                                                                                      

___________________________________  

Witnesses 

  

 

LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

 

 

 

____________________________________ BY: ___________________________  

 

                                                                                           John Hall, Board Chairman 

____________________________________ 

Witnesses 

  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

March 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Item: Title VI Program Update 

 

 

Presenter: Marcia Roberson, Director of RMCC 

 

Summary: Update and recertification of the Agency’s Title VI Program as 

outlined by 49 CFR Part 21 

 

Recommended  

Action: Approve Agency’s Title VI Program 

 

Attachments:  Title VI Program 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



Title VI Program 
FY2016-2019

Submission period 



Requirements 

This District certifies that  Lynx was a Sub recipient  and acknowledges 
compliance with Title VI.  

Citrus Connection works to ensure nondiscriminatory transportation 
in providing public transportation for all Polk County area citizens”.

Citrus Connection developed the Standard Operating Procedure 

Tracking report. To include Procedure  for how to file and complaint 
form  

Must keep Records 

Must Promote inclusive public participation



Updates 

LAMTD did not receive Title VI complaints during the 
Reporting period. 

Updates to our  websites under Civil rights  allow residents to 
complete  complaints form via web. 

We have create a investigating tracking systems in the event 
we receive a complaint related to Title VI or any complaint. 

We have increased our Public outreach 

We increased the number of Bilingual 5 service staff.  

We are  conscious in assuring we translate  documents  to 
Spanish so they are available when needed. 



✓

This document had no major changes. 
However, we expect major changes next submission

Transition as a subrecipient 
new census 
New route Structure  operational service goals 
adjustments

Questions?

























































































































































































































LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

March 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Item: Transit System Update 

 

 

Presenters: Aaron Dunn, Director of Revenue Services 

 Paul Simms, Assistant Director of Revenue Services 

 

Summary: Update on the current system of routes in Polk County and the 

evaluation of their performance. 

 

Recommended  

Action: None 

 

Attachments:  Presentation 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



RIDERSHIP IMPACT
From FY2020/2021 Route Changes 

AARON DUNN 



SYNOPSIS OF CHANGES
➢Combined Lakeland’s 11 intercity transit routes into 8 multi-

directional routes

➢Added 98.6 service hours per week (direct to our citizens)

➢Eliminated 10 transfer points throughout the system; went from 36 
to 26 total TPs 

➢Instituted a redesigned user interface; new signage and bus tracking 
tools 



OVERALL RIDERSHIP 
➢Current system-wide ridership October 19’ –thru- January 20’ is: 

276,834 (8.8% decrease from prior year Oct-Jan)

➢Current East County ridership October 19’ –thru- January 20’ is: 
130,093 (4.4% decrease from prior year Oct-Jan

➢Current Lakeland ridership October 19’ –thru- January 20’ is: 
239,269 (11.2% decrease from prior year Oct-Jan) 



PRINCIPLE CAUSATION

➢27.8% decrease in transfer points resulting from route changes 
(anticipated that this would cause a ridership decline)

➢Route changes represent a period of transition rather then an abrupt 
change (implications for continued community outreach)



MEASURING TRANSIT UTILIZATION
➢Analyzing transit participation with unduplicated headcount 

(how many riders) reveals no change in transit participation-
13,236 riders in 2019 compared to 13,239 riders in 2020 

➢This information reveals 2 essential implications for the 
district; 1.) efforts to engender transit participation and 
ridership must be targeted and pursued vigorously and 2.) an 
evaluation of where and how increased transit services are 
provided must induce decision making



1.) TARGETING OUTREACH EFFORTS
QUARTER - OCT/19-DEC/19

ROUTE

MIN PER TRIP MAX PER TRIP AVG PER TRIP MIN PER TRIP MAX PER TRIP AVG PER TRIP MIN PER TRIP MAX PER TRIP AVG PER TRIP

GOLD 20.3 21.6 20.9 24.2 25.4 24.8 11.9 12.4 12.2

PINK 16.2 18.7 17.4 14.4 16.0 15.2 13.0 14.2 13.6

BLUE 13.6 16.0 14.8 16.0 20.4 18.2 7.5 9.1 8.3

YELLOW 13.3 17.3 15.3 15.9 18.1 17.0 8.8 9.6 9.2

RED 8.4 9.9 9.2 7.7 10.1 8.9 4.3 5.9 5.1

ORANGE 8.7 12.4 10.5 12.1 16.2 14.2 6.5 7.4 7.0

GREEN 12.6 14.9 13.8 14.4 17.7 16.0 6.9 8.1 7.5

PURPLE 12 8.7 9.5 9.1 9.1 11.3 10.2 5.6 6.7 6.1

SILVER EXPRESS 22XL 29.0 34.7 31.9 25.7 32.2 28.9 18.1 21.6 19.9

LIME FLEX 10.0 11.4 10.7 8.6 9.8 9.2 4.2 4.6 4.4

CYAN FLEX 4.7 5.7 5.2 5.7 7.7 6.7 3.3 3.7 3.5

5:45 AM - 11:10 AM 11:15 AM - 3:10 PM 3:15 PM - 7:15 PM



2.) EVALUATION OF RESOURCE 
UTILIZATION

CONSIDERATIONS FOR TRANSIT RESOURCES

➢Condensing daily service lengths and increase service frequency

➢Increasing Saturday service in lieu of extending weekday service 
length

➢Create alternate route/ routes for consolidated evening or localized 
transit services 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: MARCH 11, 2020  

AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Purchase of Two Ford Transit Buses T24 Ten 

Passenger 

 

Presenter: Joseph Cheney, Maintenance Director 

 

Recommended  

Action: Approve the Purchase of two 24 Foot Ford /Collins 

Transit Buses 

 

 

 

Summary: Citrus Connection has been awarded a Public Service 

Development Grant.  The purpose of this agreement is to 

provide two (2) new buses for a new bus circulator route 

around the SR37 (South Florida Avenue) road diet pilot 

project.  The grant provides a 50/50 match for the cost of 

the bus not to exceed $85,273.00.  The buses are 

available under the Sate of Florida TRIPS Procurement 

Contract #TRIPS-17-CA-FTS-C. These buses will be 

narrow and only 24 Feet in Length with side loading 

Wheel Cahir Lift, Electronic Front Signs, Avail ITS Sys, 

2-way Radios and Bike Racks. 

  

Funding:     Each   Total 

Base cost of bus  $85,495  $170,990 

Electronic Sign  $3,812  $7,624 

AVAIL ITS Sys  $17,000  $34,000 

2Way Radio   $5,000  $5,000 

Bike Rack   $2,085  $4,170 

Diesel Engine  $1,822  $3,644 

 

Total  $115,214  $230,428 

Grant Allowance   -$85,273 

LAMTD CIP Funding   $145,155 

 

LAMTD CIP Funding is available for this project. 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

March 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #9 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Item: Policy Update Prohibiting Weapons 

 

 

Presenters: Steven Schaible, Director of Human Resources 

 

Summary: After discussions with employment legal counsel and TWU 525 

representation, a consensus about the updates weapons policy was 

established. 

 

Recommended  

Action: Approve the updated weapon policy. 

 

Attachments:  Updated Weapons Policy for the Lakeland Area Mass Transit 

District 

 MOU Regarding Informal Discussions 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



CITRUS CONNECTION POLICY PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE 

 

Policy:  Employees are be prohibited from carrying or bringing any weapon, as defined herein, 

to the workplace. This provision applies to all employees except those required to carry a 

weapon as part of their job responsibilities. 

  

Purpose:  To help ensure a safe workplace for employees, customers, vendors and all others on 

Citrus Connection property, including buses. 

 

Guidelines: 

1.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Employees are prohibited from carrying or 

bringing any weapon to their work site or any other location the employee may have to be during 

the workday. This prohibition also applies to any employee licensed to carry a firearm or 

weapon. 

2.  Weapon means any firearm, whether loaded or unloaded, from which a shot may 

be discharged including but not limited to pistol, revolver, shotgun, rifle, bb gun or any knife 

including switchblade knife, gravity knife, or any knife with a blade longer than 3 inches, or 

billy, blackjack, bludgeon, metal knuckles, bow and arrow, dirk, tear gas gun, chemical weapon 

or device, or other weapon that might incur physical injury. 

3.   Any employee who is uncertain whether an instrument or device is prohibited 

under this policy is obligated to request clarification from Human Resources to insure he or she 

does not violate this policy. 

4.  A violation of this policy is a serious infraction of the work rules and may result 

in discipline up to and including termination. 

 

Exceptions: 

 1. Certain employees may carry a “self-defense chemical spray” which means a 

device carried solely for purposes of lawful self-defense that is compact in size, designed to be 

carried on or about the person, and contains not more than two ounces of chemical “pepper 

spray” or “pepper gel”. 

 2.   A self-defense chemical spray must be no more than two (2) ounces.  An 

employee must have no felony convictions.  Pepper spray or pepper gel may only be used in self-

defense situations and cannot be used against a police officer. 

 3.  Employees permitted to apply to carry a self-defense chemical spray include Bus 

Operators and employees who have regular daily consistent face-to-face customer interactions.  

Those employees authorized to carry a self-defense spray must first obtain a certification from a 

State of Florida Licensed training program on the use of pepper spray before they are permitted 

to carry a self-defense chemical spray on the job. To be considered a valid certification program 

the training must be on file in Human Resources and be a minimum of 4 hours of training or 

longer and the trainer/instructor a current or former law enforcement officer.  

4.  A record of Citrus Connection approved verbal de-escalation training must be on  

file in Human Resources and current within the last calendar year.  



Page 1 of 2 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING REGARDING INFORMAL DISCUSSIONS 

BETWEEN 

LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT  

 AND 

TRANSPORT WORKERS UNION OF AMERICA  

AFL-CIO LOCAL 525  

 

 This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into by and between Lakeland 

Area Mass Transit District (“the District”) and Transport Workers Union of America AFL-CIO 

Local 525 (“Union”) (collectively referred to as the “Parties”): 

 WHEREAS, the District and the Union are parties to a collective bargaining agreement 

(“CBA”), effective from October 1, 2017 through October 2, 2020, covering all regular full-time 

and part-time Apprentice Technicians, Technicians, Master Technicians, Quality Assurance 

Master Technicians, Parts Procurement & MIS Administrative Specialists, Bus Operators, Bus 

Operator Trainees, Electronic Technicians, Utility 1 & 2 Technicians, Facility 1 & 2 

Technicians, and Parts Technicians. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the District and the Union desire to set forth their mutually agreed 

upon understanding in this MOU as follows: 

Beginning March 2020, the District wishes to allow Bus Operators, Bus Operator 

Trainees, and certain other customer facing employees as defined in the attached policy in order 

that these employees may defend themselves from assault.   

The Union agrees that protection of bargaining unit employees is an appropriate goal and 

approves of and agrees to the attached Policy.  

Nothing in this MOU shall abrogate or otherwise modify the parties’ respective rights 

and responsibilities as set forth in the CBA.  Nothing in this MOU is intended to or shall be 



Page 2 of 2 

 

deemed to be a modification or amendment of any other the provisions set forth the current 

CBA.   

This MOU is entirely non-precedential as to any claims (whether or not presently 

existing) by the Union, the District, or any person, firm, corporation, agency or labor 

organization, and this MOU and cannot be relied upon or otherwise used in any labor arbitration 

or civil proceeding as an admission against interest or precedent of any kind. 

 

Date: _____________     Date: _____________ 

 

 For the Union:                                                             For the District: 

  

 Kevin Smith - President    ______________________________

        Commissioner John Hall Chairman 

 

__________________________    ______________________________ 

Commissioner Sara Roberts      

McCarley 

 

______________________________

Commissioner Phillip Walker 

 

______________________________

Commissioner George Lindsey 

 

        ______________________________ 

Commissioner H. William Mutz 

         

        ______________________________ 

        Tom Phillips Executive Director  

 

         

Attachment 

 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: MAR 11, 2020  

AGENDA ITEM 10a 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Agency Updates 

 

Presenter: Tom Phillips 

 

Recommended  

Action: Informational 

 

Summary: TBA 

  

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: MAR 11, 2020  

AGENDA ITEM 11a 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: February calendar 

 

Presenter: Tom Phillips 

 

Recommended  

Action: Informational 

 

Summary: Review and summary of events taken place in February.  

  

 

 





LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: MARCH 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM #11b 

 

Agenda Item: Ridership Report 

 

Presenter: Tom Phillips, ED 

 

Recommended  

Action: Information only 

 

 

 

Summary: Year to date ridership information for the entire system 

including LAMTD, Winter Haven, Rural and Demand 

Response through January 31, 2020 

  

  

 

 

Attachments: Ridership Report. 

  

 

 













UAP Ridership Totals FY 2019 LAMTD WHAT Total
December 11,129 8,073 19,202                  

January 13,166 9,880 23,046                  

UAP Ridership 2019 LAMTD WHAT Total

Polk State College

December 1,329 862 2,191                    

January 2,437 1,174 3,611                    

LEGOLAND

December 79 1,088 1,167                    

January 109 1,258 1,367                    

Southeastern University

December 122 81 203                       

January 254 66 320                       

COLTS

December 1,758 1,127 2,885                    

January 1,992 1,718 3,710                    

Veterans

December 3,333 1,192 4,525                    

January 3,547 1,276 4,823                    

Southern Technical College

December 86 202 288                       

January 67 344 411                       

Central Florida Healthcare

December 718 412 1,130                    

January 898 431 1,329                    

New Beginnings High School

December 937 2,457 3,394                    

January 1,075 2,826 3,901                    

LDDA

December 12 0 12                          

January 13 0 13                          

PACE

december 341 199 540                       

January 422 308 730                       

Peace River

December 2,414 453 2,867                    

January 2,352 479 2,831                    

Summer of Safety

December 0 0 -                             

January 0 0 -                             



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: MAR 11, 2020  

AGENDA ITEM#12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Other Business 

 

Presenter: TBD 

 

Recommended  

Action: TBD 

 

Summary: TBD 

  

 

 


	0- AGENDA
	1- Approval of LAMTD Minutes
	1-Board Minutes February 12, 2020
	2 - Public Comments
	3 - Presentation of the District Independent Audit
	4a- LAMTD Agenda ITEM FS  -mar2020
	4a- Financial Report mar2020
	4a- January 2020 Board Financials
	4b- LAMTD pcts Agenda ITEM  -mar2020
	4b- LAMTD pcts Agenda ITEM  -Summary mar2020
	4b- January 2020 Financials
	4c- LAMTD Agenda ITEM  -mar2020
	4c- LAMTD Agenda ITEM  -summary-mar2020
	4c- 07 - TD - January Financials
	4d- agenda item 5310 capital 2020
	4d- Resolution 1
	4e- Agenda Item
	4e- RESOLUTION Corridor 2020
	4f- agenda item 5311  2020
	4f- Resolution of award 5311 2020
	4g- BOD Item 031120
	5- FlixBus Indemnification Agreement
	5- Release and Indemnification
	6- Title VI Program Update
	6- Title VI Program
	6- TITLE VI
	7- Transit System Update
	7- Ridership Impact Presentation 3-10-20
	8- BOD Agenda Item Purchase of 2 Ford Transit Buses T24 10 Passenger
	9- Policy Update Prohibiting Weapons
	9- Weapons Policy 02.07.2020
	9- LAMTD MOU 2.24.2020
	10a - BOD Agenda Item Agency Updates
	11a - BOD Agenda Item Feb calendar
	11a- Feb Calendar
	11b- Agenda Item 3-11-20
	11b- Ridership Report March
	11b- UAP Ridership Spreadsheet as of 2.7.20
	12- BOD Agenda Item Other business

